









#### Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr Head of Legal and Democratic Services Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd

To: Councillor Eryl Williams (Chairman)

Councillors: Aaron Shotton, Kevin Jones, Dave Cowans, Michael Priestley, David Smith, W. G. Roberts, John Wynn Jones, Richard Dew and J. Arwel Roberts

CS/NG

27 August 2013

Nicola Gittins 01352 702345 nicola.gittins@flintshire.gov.uk

Dear Sir / Madam

A meeting of the <u>NORTH WALES RESIDUAL WASTE JOINT COMMITTEE</u> will be held in the <u>COUNCIL CHAMBER, BODLONDEB, CONWY</u> on <u>TUESDAY 3</u>
<u>SEPTEMBER</u> at <u>5.30PM</u> to consider the following items.

\*\* Members and Officers of the Joint Committee are invited to attend a confidential briefing from 5.30pm – 6.30pm.

Yours faithfully

f. ---

Democracy & Governance Manager

# AGENDA

- 1 APOLOGIES
- 2 **DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST**
- 3 APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES

County Hall, Mold. CH7 6NA
Tel. 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4

www.flintshire.gov.uk
Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug. CH7 6NR
Ffôn 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4

www.siryfflint.gov.uk

# 4 MATTERS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MEETING

# 5 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2012-13 REPORT

# LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 - TO CONSIDER THE EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following item is considered to be exempt by virtue of Paragraph(s) 14 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

The contract process is still underway and would be prejudiced by making public at this stage

- 6 **PROCUREMENT UPDATE**
- 7 ANY OTHER BUSINESS











# **NORTH WALES RESIDUAL WASTE JOINT COMMITTEE**

Minutes of the meeting of the Joint Committee held at Council Offices, Anglesey on Thursday 11<sup>th</sup> July, 2013.

# **PRESENT:**

Councillor Eryl Williams (Chairman) – Denbighshire County Council

Councillor Mike Priestley (Vice-Chairman) – Conwy County Borough Council

Councillor Aaron Shotton – Flintshire County Council

Councillor David Smith - Denbighshire County Council

Councillor William Gareth Roberts - Gwynedd County Council

Councillor Richard Dew – Isle of Anglesey County Council

# **ALSO PRESENT:**

# Flintshire County Council

Colin Everett, Carl Longland, Kerry Feather, Chris Cohen, Louise Pedreschi and David Webster.

# **Denbighshire County Council**

Steve Parker

# **Conwy County Borough Council**

Andrew Kirkham

# **Gwynedd County Council**

Dilwyn Williams

# **Isle of Anglesey County Council**

**Dewi Williams** 

John Eastwood

# **North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Partnership**

Stephen Penny, Steffan Owen and Karen Powell











# **Partnerships UK**

Hazel Nickless

#### **Grant Thornton**

Saeefar Rehman

# 1. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Arthur Owen, Meirion Edwards and Councillor John Arwel Roberts, (Isle of Anglesey County Council), Councillor Kevin Jones, (Flintshire County Council), Councillor Dave Cowans, (Conwy County Borough Council), Councillor John Wyn Jones, (Gwynedd County Council), Huw Roberts, (Partnerships UK).

# 2. <u>DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST</u>

Councillor Aaron Shotton declared an interest due to raising residents concerns, but this was agreed as not being prejudicial.

#### 3. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN TO THE JOINT COMMITTEE

Nomination put forward, Councillor Eryl Williams, Denbighshire County Council to be voted in as Chair.

# **RESOLVED**:

Councillor Eryl Williams be elected as Chair.

Nomination put forward, Councillor Mike Priestley, Conwy County Borough Council to be voted in as Vice-Chair.











# **RESOLVED:**

Councillor Mike Priestley be elected as Vice-Chair.

# 4. <u>APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES</u>

The minutes of the meeting of the North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee held on the 20<sup>th</sup> February, 2013 were submitted for approval.

# **RESOLVED:**

That the minutes be approved as a correct record.

# 5. MATTERS ARISING FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING

There were no matters arising.

# 6. PROGRESS REPORT (SO REPORT)

The Project Manager presented the progress report and advised that further dialogue sessions to be held with WTI and informed all other actions would be covered in the agenda items.

# **RESOLVED:**

That the report be noted.

# 7. RIR – RISK STATUS UPDATE (SP REPORT)

The Project Director presented a Risk Register report which highlighted some of the amendments to the risk register that had been made to reflect the current understanding of risks and mitigation measures that were in place.











The Project Director reported that there are no new risks identified this reporting period.

The Project Director also reported a minor correction to the description of risk CO5.

Andrew Kirkham asked if changes to CO5 are noted in the report.

The Project Director advised highlighted on page 20 of the report in red text.

# **RESOLVED:**

That the updated Risk Register for the project be noted.

# 8. <u>COMMUNICATIONS UPDATE (SO REPORT)</u>

The Project Manager updated Members on communication matters concerning the North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project (NWRWTP).

# Media Coverage

The Project Manager reported that there has been no media coverage other than the drop-in sessions held in March.

# Other Coverage/Activity

The Project Manager advised the response to Môn a Gwynedd Friends of the Earth (FoE) had been issued and that the project was discussed at FoE meeting last month.

The Project Manager also raised awareness that Burton Residents Association (BRA) had recently updated their website regarding the project.











Councillor Aaron Shotton asked if the project will be engaging with BRA.

The Project Manager advised will liaise with BRA and stakeholders across the board.

Councillor Mike Priestley stated slow in responding to FoE, could be sharper in future and put holding response out to Members.

Colin Everett in agreement need to fast track responses.

# Public Drop-in Sessions at Connah's Quay

The Project Manager gave a brief overview as previously reported to the JC.

# **RESOLVED:**

That the Communication Update be noted.

# 9. FCC INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT (FCC HEAD OF FINANCE REPORT)

David Webster (FCC) presented the Internal Audit report to the group and provided background information regarding the report and advised as follows:

- That an effective governance framework has been established for managing risks
- Best practice risk register maintained, risk identification, assessment, mitigation and reporting are robust
- Clear decision making protocol established
- Procurement process structured to optimise value for money

David Webster advised overall a good report.











Colin Everett reported to the group positive feedback received and a clean bill of health.

#### RESOLVED:

That the Joint Committee accepts the report.

# 10. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2012-13 REPORT (FCC HEAD OF FINANCE REPORT)

Chris Cohen presented the Statement of Accounts report to the group and provided background information regarding the report and advised the audit must be completed and the Statement of Accounts approved and published by no later than 30<sup>th</sup> September 2013.

Chris Cohen informed Audit currently auditing accounts for the project and asked the Committee to note the contents of the report until the Statements of Accounts are ready for signing.

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the Joint Committee note the draft Statement of Accounts 2012/13 (including the Annual Governance Statement).

# 11. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT REPORT (FCC HEAD OF FINANCE & FCC HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES)

David Webster (FCC) presented the Annual Governance Statement report to the group and provided background information regarding the report and advised there are no outstanding significant governance issues for the project at this time.











# **RESOLVED**:

That the Joint Committee note the contents of the report and that they will formally be required to approve the Annual Governance Statement at the next JC meeting.

# 12. PROJECT RESOURCE REPORT – 2012/13 OUTTURN AND 2013/14 BUDGET (SP REPORT)

The Project Manager presented the Project Resource Report 2012/13 Outturn and 2013/14 Budget to the group.

The Project Manager went through the considerations listed in 3.1 - 3.6 of the report. The Project Manager outlined 2 options in 3.7 take project up to contract award or as in Appendix 2 preferred bidder appointment.

The Project Director advised that £2.83m was the agreed budget to take through to contract award and looking for steer from JC.

Colin Everett suggested two stages.

Councillor Mike Priestley queried project projections, total advisor costs and site survey.

The Project Director advised additional Deeside site investigations, included as contingency if WTI are not awarded contract the Partnership would re-imburse costs to WTI.

Councillor David Smith asked if we had received price from WTI.









Colin Everett advised will be covered in the next item on the agenda to be discussed.

# **RESOLVED**:

- a) Joint Committee members to note the final outturn for 2012/3 (subject to audit) at this stage and that this be considered at the next meeting of the JC.
- b) JC members approve the proposed 2013/14 budget (based on the assumptions as set out in the report).
- c) Agreed two stages (3,000,000 1<sup>st</sup> then later PB award).

# LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 – TO CONSIDER THE EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following item is considered to be exempt by virtue of Paragraph(s) 14 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

The contract process is still underway and would be prejudiced by making public at this stage.

# 13. PROCUREMENT UPDATE REPORT (Part 2 Report - SP)

Colin Everett gave background information and summary prior to the presentation.

The Project Director reminded the group regarding the drivers behind the project.

The Project Director gave a presentation to the group highlighting the following areas:

- Procurement stages
- Summary of recent process and developments
- Key facts arising from draft CFT including headlines











# **RESOLVED:**

That the report be noted.

All in agreement.

# 11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

SO advised next meeting of the JC scheduled for 15<sup>th</sup> August, will look to canvass date in early September.









# **AGENDA ITEM NO:5**

# **FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL**

REPORT TO:	JOINT COMMITTEE
DATE:	3 SEPTEMBER 2013
REPORT BY:	HEAD OF FINANCE
SUBJECT:	STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2012/13

PURPOSE OF REPORT
To present to Members of the Joint Committee the Statement of Accounts 2012/13 for the North Wales Residual Waste Partnership (NWRWP), incorporating those changes agreed with the Wales Audit Office (WAO) during the course of the audit.
To present to Members of the Joint Committee, the WAO's report in connection with the audit of the 2012/13 financial statements.
To present to Members of the Joint Committee the Letter of Representation.
BACKGROUND
The Joint Committee received the draft Statement of Accounts 2012/13 by e-mail on 25th June 2013 - for information only at that stage; the Accounts and Audit (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2010 specify the statutory deadline for the approval of the accounts, being 30th September.
CONSIDERATIONS
The Statement of Accounts for 2012/13 incorporating those changes agreed with the WAO during the course of the audit is attached at Appendix A.
Under the International Standards on Auditing (ISA) 260, the WAO is required to communicate relevant matters relating to the audit of the final statements to those charged with governance, which for the Partnership is the Joint Committee.











3.03	The WAO's ISA 260 report 'Audit of the Financial Statements – North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee, is attached at Appendix B.
3.04	The WAO's report includes details of significant issues arising from the audit, and a summary of corrections made to the draft financial statements.
3.05	It is usual, within the course of the audit of any organisation, that items will be brought to the attention of the body being audited (in this case the Joint Committee). The audit findings have been discussed in detail with the WAO, and those adjustments made have been reflected in the Statement of Accounts.
3.06	The Letter of Representation requires the Joint Committee to confirm the accuracy of the audit. In this letter, the Joint Committee confirms to the WAO that all the information contained within the financial statements is true and accurate and that all information has been disclosed. The proposed Letter of Representation is attached at Appendix C.
4.00	RECOMMENDATIONS
4.01	Members are requested to approve the final version of the Statement of Accounts 2012/13.
4.02	Members are requested to consider the WAO's report; Audit of the Financial Statements – North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Partnership.
l	· a.m.e.e.mp
4.03	Members are requested to approve the Letter of Representation.
4.03 <b>5.00</b>	
	Members are requested to approve the Letter of Representation.
5.00	Members are requested to approve the Letter of Representation.  FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
<b>5.00</b> 5.01	Members are requested to approve the Letter of Representation.  FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  None.
<b>5.00</b> 5.01 <b>6.00</b>	Members are requested to approve the Letter of Representation.  FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  None.  ANTI POVERTY IMPACT
<b>5.00</b> 5.01 <b>6.00</b> 6.01	Members are requested to approve the Letter of Representation.  FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  None.  ANTI POVERTY IMPACT  None.
5.00 5.01 6.00 6.01 7.00	Members are requested to approve the Letter of Representation.  FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  None.  ANTI POVERTY IMPACT  None.  ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT











9.00	PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS
9.01	None.
10.00	CONSULTATION REQUIRED
10.01	None required.
11.00	CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN
11.01	None required.
12.00	<u>APPENDICES</u>
12.01	Appendix A – Statement of Accounts NWRWP 2012/13 Appendix B – WAO report, Audit of the Financial Statements – North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee. Appendix C – Letter of Representation NWRWP 2012/13
	LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
	Various 2012/13 Final Accounts Working Papers
	Contact Officer: Liz Thomas
	Telephone: 01352 702289  Email: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk
	Email: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

# NORTH WALES RESIDUAL WASTE PARTNERSHIP

# NORTH WALES RESIDUAL WASTE TREATMENT PROJECT

# STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

2012-13

# CONTENTS

	Page
North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project	
Explanatory Foreword	1
Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts	2-3
Financial Statements -	
Movement in Reserves Statement	4
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement	5
Balance Sheet	6
Cash Flow Statement	7
Notes to the Core Financial Statements (Including Statement of Accounting Policies)	8-11
Independent Auditor's Report to the Joint Committee	12-13
Annual Governance Statement	14-21

#### **EXPLANATORY FOREWORD**

#### Introduction

The North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project (NWRWTP) is a partnership of Flintshire County Council (Lead Authority), the Isle of Anglesey County Council, Conwy County Borough Council, Denbighshire County Council, and Gwynedd County Council created in order to seek a solution for residual waste on behalf of the five partner authorities, for a 25 year period.

The partnership is underpinned by a legally binding Inter-Authority Agreement (IAA) that all five partner authorities have signed. This commits the partner authorities to working together throughout the procurement process up until contract award. The North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee manages the project on behalf of all five partner authorities, and has delegated authority to do so (including de-selection of bidders) up until the Preferred Bidder stage of the procurement process. The North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee consists of two members from each partner authority, with one member from each partner authority having voting rights at Joint Committee meetings.

The decision to award Preferred Bidder will need to be agreed by all five partner authorities individually and therefore a full approval process will be required within each one (e.g. Cabinet/Executive and Full Council). The project is at present in dialogue with the one remaining bidder (Wheelabrator) with dialogue expected to be closed June 2013. The Preferred Bidder approvals process within each partner authority is expected to take place in late 2013 with a planning application to follow after that. The facility is currently expected to be operational in 2017.

#### **The Financial Statements**

The Statement of Accounts 2012/13 provide details of the NWRWTP's financial position for the year ended 31st March 2013, and reflects the wholly revenue nature of the activities undertaken. The information presented on pages 4 to 11 is in accordance with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2005. The statements included are:-

- movement in reserves statement this statement shows the movement in the
  year on the different reserves held by the Joint Committee, analysed into 'usable
  reserves' (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure) and other reserves.
  Nil balances are recorded throughout the statement, linked with the equivalent nil
  values recorded within those statements referred to below.
- **comprehensive income and expenditure statement** this statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. All income and expenditure is shared equally between the five partner authorities.
- balance sheet the Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date
  of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Joint Committee. The net assets
  (assets less liabilities) of the Joint Committee are matched by the reserves held.
- cash flow statement the Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Joint Committee during the reporting period. The statement shows how the Joint Committee generates and uses cash and cash equivalents.

The Statement of Accounts is available on the internet (<a href="www.nwrwtp.org">www.nwrwtp.org</a>); further information is available from the Head of Finance, Flintshire County Council, County Hall, Mold, CH7 6NA.

# STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS – NORTH WALES RESIDUAL WASTE TREATMENT PROJECT

#### THE JOINT COMMITTEE'S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Joint Committee is required to :-

- make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Joint Committee, this is the Head of Finance;
- to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets;
- to approve the accounts.

Signature:	Date:

**Chair of North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Partnership Joint Committee** 

# STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS – NORTH WALES RESIDUAL WASTE TREATMENT PROJECT

continued

#### THE HEAD OF FINANCE'S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Head of Finance is responsible for the preparation of the statement of accounts in accordance with the proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in Great Britain ("the Code").

In preparing this statement of accounts, the Head of Finance has :-

- selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
- made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;
- complied with the Code.

**Treasurer of the Joint Committee** 

The Head of Finance has also :-

- kept proper accounting records which were up to date;
- taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

#### Certificate of the Head of Finance as Treasurer of the Joint Committee

I certify that the statement of accounts give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Joint Committee at 31st March 2013 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended.

Signed:	Date:	
Kerry Feather CPFA Head of Finance		

# **MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT**

for the year ended 31st March 2013

Movements 2012/13	Capital Receipts Reserve £	Capital Grants Unapplied £	Gereral Balance £	Earmarked Reserves £	Total Usable Reserves £	Unusable Reserves £	Total Reserves £
At 31st March 2012	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Surplus/(deficit) on the provision of services	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Other comprehensive income and expenditure	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Total comprehensive income and expenditure	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Adjustments between accounting and funding basis under regulations	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Net increase/(decrease) before transfer to earmarked reserves	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Transfers to/(from) earmarked reserves	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Increase/(decrease) in year	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
At 31st March 2013	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

Movements 2011/12	Capital Receipts Reserve £	Capital Grants Unapplied £	Gereral Balance £	Earmarked Reserves £	Total Usable Reserves £	Unusable Reserves £	Total Reserves £
At 31st March 2011	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Surplus/(deficit) on the provision of services	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Other comprehensive income and expenditure	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Total comprehensive income and expenditure	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Adjustments between accounting and funding basis under regulations -	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Net increase/(decrease) before transfer to earmarked reserves	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Transfers to/(from) earmarked reserves	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Increase/(decrease) in year	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
At 31st March 2012	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

Note: There are no recorded entries in the Movement in Reserves Statements, reflecting the opening and closing balance sheet position of nil reserves

# COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT for the year ended 31st March 2013

Expendi	ture	2013 £	2012 £
·			
Note 2			
(a)	Employees	207,994	244,959
	Transport	998	1,357
(b)	Supplies & Services	518,826	613,235
(c)	Support Services	114,979	138,373
	Gross Expenditure	842,797	997,924
Income			
(d)	Grants and Contributions	(842,797)	(997,924)
	Total Income	(842,797)	(997,924)
Net (Sur	plus)/Deficit	0	0

# **BALANCE SHEET**

as at 31st March 2013

	Note	2013 £	2012 £
NON-CURRENT ASSETS		0	0
CURRENT ASSETS Short term debtors	3	417,599	864,784
CURRENT LIABILITIES Short term creditors	4	417,599	864,784
NET CURRENT ASSETS		0	0
NET ASSETS		0	0
TOTAL RESERVES		0	0

# **CASH FLOW STATEMENT**

for the year ended 31st March 2013

	2013 £	2012 £
Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services	0	0
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance	0	0
Net cash outflow from capital expenditure	0	0
Net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents	0	0
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year	0	0
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year	0	0

Note: There are no individual entries in the summary cash flow statement as entries at the more detailed level sum to zero.

for the year ended 31st March 2013

#### 1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 2012/13 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) - based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) - issued by CIPFA, supported by guidance notes on the application of accounting standards.

#### **Debtors and Creditors**

The revenue accounts of the Joint Committee are prepared on an accruals basis. Sums are included in the final accounts to cover income or expenditure attributable to the year of account for goods received or work done, but for which payment has not been received/made by 31st March 2013.

#### **Government Grants and Contributions**

Grant receipts in support of revenue expenditure are accounted for on an accruals basis.

#### **Overheads**

The costs of centrally provided support services and administrative buildings have been charged to services in line with the Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP).

#### **Value Added Tax**

The Council receives reimbursement for the net cost of value added tax incurred. The accounts have been prepared exclusive of tax, in accordance with SSAP 5.

#### 2. INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

	2013	2012
	£	£
(a) Employees		
Contractor payments - Project Director *	123,263	161,490
Salaries	64,933	64,038
Social Security costs	5,188	5,010
Other Pension costs	14,610	14,409
Agency Staff	0	12
	207,994	244,959

<sup>\*</sup> see note 5 on page 10.

continued

(b)	Supplies and Services	2013 £	2012 £
(5)	Advisor costs	-	~
	Technical and Communications	273,171	245,313
	Legal	146,201	235,664
	Financial	82,243	108,021
	Insurance	9,500	1,121
	Other	1,190	12,950
		512,305	603,069
	Advertising/Publicity	3,997	6,261
	Audit Fee *	2,524	3,905
	Total Supplies and Services	518,826	613,235
		2013	2012
(c)	Support Services -	£	£
	Finance, Technical, Legal & Procurement Support		
	Lead Authority Personnel		
	Finance	42,544	35,735
	Legal	29,466	28,984
	Jole of Angleson County Council Dergonnel	72,010	64,719
	Isle of Anglesey County Council Personnel	<u>26,998</u> 99,008	37,000 101,719
	Office services		
	IT/ Telephones	738	1,630
	Software Stationery/Printing	2,440 2,048	4,020 2,622
	Translation	2,977	2,622
	Handadon	8,203	10,783
	Accommodation	7,768	25,871
	Total Support Services	114,979	138,373
		2013	2012
		£	£
(d)	Income -		
	Contribution from participating Local Authorities		
	Conwy County Borough Council	(100,629)	(199,584)
	Denbighshire County Council	(100,628)	(199,585)
	Flintshire County Council	(100,628)	(199,585)
	Gwynedd County Council Isle of Anglesey County Council	(100,628) (100,628)	(199,585) (199,585)
	isle of Anglesey County Council	(503,141)	(997,924)
	Grants	(000,141)	(551,524)
	Welsh Government	(339,656)	0
	Total Income	(842,797)	(997,924)

<sup>\*</sup> see note 6 on page 10.

continued

#### 3. DEBTORS

	2013 £	2012 £
Local authorities Other entities and individuals	411,582 6,017	783,223 81,561
	417,599	864,784

#### 4. CREDITORS

	2013 £	2012 £
Local authorities Other entities and individuals	298,863 118,736	804,330 60,454
	417,599	864,784

#### 5. OFFICERS' REMUNERATION

Regulation 7A of the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Amendment Regulations 2010 requires disclosure (in £5,000 bandings) of the number of employees whose remuneration – all sums paid to or receivable by the employee, expense allowances chargeable to tax, and the money value of benefits - exceeded £60,000.

One employee meets the disclosure requirement – the Project Director, a contracted employee :-

	2013	2012
Remuneration Band	No.	No.
£120,000 - £124,999	1	0
£125,000 - £129,999	0	0
£130,000 - £134,999	0	0
£135,000 - £139,999	0	0
£140,000 - £144,999	0	0
£145,000 - £149,999	0	0
£150,000 - £154,999	0	0
£155,000 - £159,999	0	0
£160,000 - £164,999	0	1
	1	1

#### **6. EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS**

The 2012/13 audit fee charges in relation to the Statement of Accounts amounted to £4,000 (£3,905 in 2011/12), a figure which is netted down to £2,524 by way of a prior year accounting adjustment. External audit services were provided by Wales Audit Office.

continued

# 7. RELATED PARTIES

The Joint Committee is required to disclose material transactions with related parties i.e. bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Committee or to be controlled or influenced by the Committee; there were no such transactions during 2012/13 (as was the position in 2011/12).

# INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE NORTH WALES RESIDUAL WASTE JOINT COMMITTEE

I have audited the accounting statements and related notes of the North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee for the year ended 31 March 2013 under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004.

The North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee's accounting statements comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet and the Cash Flow Statement.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2012-13 based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

# Respective responsibilities of the responsible financial officer and the independent auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts, the responsible financial officer is responsible for the preparation of the statement of accounts which gives a true and fair view.

My responsibility is to audit the accounting statements and related notes in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require me to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

#### Scope of the audit of the accounting statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the accounting statements and related notes sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the accounting statements and related notes are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the responsible financial officer and the overall presentation of the accounting statements and related notes.

In addition, I read all the financial and non-financial information in the Explanatory Foreword to identify material inconsistencies with the audited accounting statements and related notes. If I become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies, I consider the implications for my report.

# INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE NORTH WALES RESIDUAL WASTE JOINT COMMITTEE

continued

# Opinion on the accounting statements of the North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee

In my opinion the accounting statements and related notes:

- give a true and fair view of the financial position of the North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee as at 31 March 2013 and of its income and expenditure for the year then ended; and
- have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2012-13.

## **Opinion on other matters**

In my opinion, the information contained in the Explanatory Foreword for the financial year for which the accounting statements and related notes are prepared is consistent with the accounting statements and related notes.

#### Matters on which I report by exception

I have nothing to report in respect of the Governance Statement on which I report to you if, in my opinion, it does not reflect compliance with 'Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework' published by CIPFA/SOLACE in June 2007, or if the statement is misleading or inconsistent with other information I am aware of from my audit.

#### Certificate of completion of audit

I certify that I have completed the audit of the accounts of the North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the Auditor General for Wales.

Signature:	Date:
Signature:	Date:

Anthony Barrett Wales Audit Office 24 Cathedral Road Cardiff CF11 9LJ

for the year ended 31st March 2013

This statement has the following five sections:-

- 1. Scope of Responsibilities.
- 2. The Purpose of the Governance Framework.
- The Governance Framework.
- 4. Review of Effectiveness
- 5. Significant Governance Issues.

# 1. SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

The North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for and used appropriately and effectively. In discharging this overall responsibility, the North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project should maintain proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions and the management of risk.

Each of the Authorities taking part in the Project has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate Governance which is consistent with the principles of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) / the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives and Senior Managers (SOLACE) Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: A Framework.

Flintshire County Council is the Project's lead council and its Code of Corporate Governance is included in Flintshire County Council's Constitution and a copy is also available from Flintshire's Democracy & Governance Manager in Legal and Democratic Services.

This Statement explains how the North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project has complied with the Code and also meets the requirements of the Accounts and Audit (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2010.

#### 2. THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The governance framework brings together the systems and processes, staff, other resources, culture and values by which the Project is managed and controlled and the activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads the community. The framework enables the Project to monitor achievement against its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate services and value for money.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risks and challenges to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore provide proportionate and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Project's policies, priorities, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks and challenges occurring and to evaluate the impact if they do; to manage risks efficiently, effectively and economically.

continued

The governance framework has been in place at the North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project for the year ended 31st March 2013 and up to the date of approval of the annual statement of accounts.

#### 3. THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

#### **Code of Corporate Governance**

The key elements of each Authority's governance arrangements are reflected in their individual Codes of Corporate Governance. Codes apply to all aspects of each Authority's business. Members and employees are required to conduct themselves in accordance with the high standards expected by the citizens of North Wales and the six core principles set out within the revised CIPFA / SOLACE Framework:-

- Focusing on the purpose of the authority and on outcomes for the community and creating and implementing a vision for the local area
- Members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly defined functions and roles
- Promoting values for the authority and demonstrating the values of good governance through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour
- Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and managing risk
- Developing the capacity and capability of members and officers to be effective
- Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public accountability

#### **Inter Authority Relationship**

The whole Project is based on the joint working of all five North Wales Authorities with a common aim of securing a Residual Waste Treatment contract. The relationship is made legally binding by the Inter Authority Agreements (the 1<sup>st</sup> one signed by the Authorities on the 24<sup>th</sup> June 2010 takes matters up to the conclusion of the Procurement and the 2<sup>nd</sup> one will take matters through the long-term Project Agreement with approved final bidder). The Inter Authority Agreement is supported financially and in terms of policy by the Welsh Government (who also carry out a commercial review of the final Project Agreement to be signed prior to close of Dialogue with the Bidder).

#### **Inter Authority Agreement**

The key elements of the Project's governance arrangements are reflected in the Inter-Authority Agreement, which outlines the Joint Committee's terms of reference, formalises the respective roles and responsibilities in relation to the joint working arrangements for the procurement of the Project, and appoints Flintshire County Council as the lead council.

Copies of the Inter-Authority Agreement are available by contacting Flintshire County Council's Head of Legal and Democratic Services.

#### **Project Structure**

Section 6 of the Inter-Authority Agreement sets out the procedures for making decisions during the procurement phase of the Project. The Councils have approved 3 categories together with the means by which decisions will be taken; 'Project Board Matter', 'Joint Committee Matter' and a 'Matter Reserves to the Councils'. A list of procurement stages called 'Procurement Milestones' along with the decision making category allocated to each milestone is included in Schedule 1 of the Inter-Authority Agreement.

continued

# **Project Board**

The Project Board consists of the Chief Executive of the lead council, one director or senior office representative from each of the other four Councils, the Project Director, the Project Section 151 Officer (of the lead council), the Project Monitoring Officer (of the lead council) and other external parties as appropriate. The quorum necessary for Project Board Meeting is a Senior Officer Representative from each Council. The Chair of the Project Board is appointed by the Project Board from time to time. The Project Board strives to reach a consensus but decisions at meetings are taken by a simple majority vote with each Council having one vote only.

The purpose of the Project Board is to implement the Procurement Milestones and the day-to-day management and monitoring of the procurement process. The Project Board has the powers to make decisions and make recommendations as set out in Schedule 3 of the Inter-Authority Agreement.

#### **Joint Committee**

Each Council appoints two elected members of their executive or cabinet, one of whom is a voting member, as their representatives to the Joint Committee. The Chair and Vice Chair of the Joint Committee are elected executive members of a Council who are elected by the Joint Committee at the annual general meeting. Appointments take effect until the next annual general meeting. The quorum necessary for a Joint Committee Meeting is five members of the Joint Committee comprising at least one member from each of the Councils. Decisions at meeting of the Joint Committee are taken by simple majority vote with each elected voting member or appropriate deputy from each Council having one vote.

The Joint Committee has the powers to make decisions and recommendations within its terms of reference as set out in Schedule 2 of the Inter-Authority Agreement.

#### **Matters Reserved to the Councils**

Each Authority has its own Constitution which sets out responsibility for making decisions which can be found on each Council's website.

#### **Members**

On taking office all elected Members are required to sign a Declaration of Acceptance of Office whereby they undertake to be guided by the National Code of Local Government Conduct in the performance of their functions as a Councillor. Each Authority has an individual Members' Code that complies with the National Code and all Members are given a copy of it when taking up office. Any complaints that a Member has not complied with the Code are considered by the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales who may refer any apparent breaches to either the relevant Council's Standards Committee or to the Adjudication Panel for Wales which may apply sanctions if a breach of the Code is found.

#### Officers

Officers are subject to a separate Code of Conduct, each Authority has an individual Officers' Code of Conduct. Breach of the Officers' Code can lead to disciplinary action.

Copies of both the Members and Officers Codes of Conduct are available from each Authority.

continued

#### **Lead Council**

The Councils have agreed that Flintshire County Council shall be the lead council. Responsibilities include:

- Acting on behalf of the Project in the management and supervision of the procurement exercise
- Act as the employing authority for any staff engaged in the discharge of the Project's functions
- Being the legal point of contact for the purposes of managing the procurement
- Providing such additional administrative resources and office facilities that may be necessary for the purpose of discharging the Project and hold all central funds
- Provide senior officers who will act as Secretary, Monitoring Officer, and Treasurer (who will also be the Section 151 Officer) for the Project and who will therefore act as the primary legal and financial advisers to the Project
- Responsibility for liaison and communication with Welsh Government and coordination of communication and public relations
- Power to enter into contracts for Consultants as required for the purposes of the Project

# **Monitoring Officer**

Article 15 of Flintshire County Council's Constitution designates the Head of Legal and Democratic Services as the Council's Monitoring Officer under Section 5 of the Local Government & Housing Act 1989 and therefore is the Project's Monitoring Officer.

#### **Finance**

Flintshire County Council's Head of Finance as lead council is the Project's Responsible Finance Officer and takes responsibility for the proper administration of the North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project's financial affairs under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 and in accordance with the CIPFA Statement on the role of the Chief Financial Officer.

Flintshire County Council as lead council holds all central funds, and the Project applies the lead council's Contract Procedure Rules and Financial Procedure Rules. Flintshire County Council treats the Project's funds with the same stewardship to that of its own funds and there are robust arrangements for effective financial management and control through the Council's accounting procedures, key financial systems, Financial Procedure Rules and Contract Procedure Rules as set out in Flintshire County Council's Constitution. Both the Financial Procedure Rules and Contract Procedure Rules are regularly reviewed and are available on Flintshire County Council's intranet called the infonet.

Section 9 of the Inter-Authority Agreement sets out the financial commitments each Council has agreed to make to the Project, together with arrangements for agreeing and reimbursing Project costs incurred by each Council. The Joint Committee has overall responsibility for monitoring the budget, which it does by receiving regular budget status reports as part of the overall project update as a regular agenda item. The Project Board also receives a budget status report as part of the overall project update as a regular agenda item. There is a section within the Inter-Authority Agreement that sets out procedures for any expenditure not within the agreed expenditure profile; the Project Board must agree any such expenditure in advance.

continued

Flintshire County Council as lead council has adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance Accountants (CIPFA) Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice. Treasury Management is conducted in accordance with Flintshire County Council's Treasury Management Policy and Strategy Statement and Treasury Management Practices which are both reviewed annually. All borrowing and long term financing is made in accordance with CIPFA's Prudential Code. Treasury Management update reports are made to Flintshire County Council's Audit Committee and Cabinet on a guarterly basis.

#### **Business Planning**

The Project has established a robust approach to business planning. The project is not a continuous project, but rather a specific one off process with a set outcome – the procurement of a residual waste treatment contract. The justification for the project, its outline description and indicative costs, project timetable, project governance and management arrangements and the project budget was set out in a Project Initiation Document (PID – final version dated 1 October 2008) and was agreed by all authorities. This allowed a dedicated project team to be employed, which allowed an Outline Business Case and Inter-Authority Agreement to be developed, and ultimately agreed by all authorities.

The Outline Business Case (OBC) set out the strategic, economic, commercial, financial and management case for the Project, all prepared in accordance with good industry practice. It also served as a bid document to the Welsh Government (WG) for financial support for the project. The OBC was approved by WG, which led to WG committing to supporting the cost of the contract up to a value of £142.7m. There are also various stages where WG have carried out and will carry out "gateway reviews" to ensure that the project is progressing satisfactorily and that the project agreement (contract) is represents value for money and does not pose unacceptable risk to the authorities,

All the authorities report the project's progress to their Members that are not on the Joint Committee. WG carry out "gateway reviews" at various key stages in the project to ensure that the project is progressing satisfactorily and that the project agreement (contract) represents value for money and does not pose unacceptable risk to the authorities.

#### **Communications**

Communicating, consulting and engaging with the public and stakeholders is a key aspect of the NWRWTP. Since its inception, the partnership has created and regularly updated a communications plan. Communication and Engagement is a regular item on the agenda of every Project Board and Joint Committee meeting and there is a communication officer group that meet on an as and when basis with each partner authority's press office / communications officers present.

The above governance arrangements have ensured that there has been consultation, communication and engagement with stakeholders at all levels from partner authority Members to interest groups to residents throughout the process.

#### Risk Management

The Project has a detailed risk register that is a regular item on the Project Board and Joint Committee agendas. Any new risks, any changes to existing risks and the highest level risks are highlighted to both groups at all of their meetings.

continued

#### **Regulation and Assurance**

Regulation and accountability provides assurance for the effectiveness of the Project's arrangements for the services it is responsible for and the achievement of its objectives. It is undertaken both internally through governance arrangements, practices and procedures and externally by various organisations such as the Wales Audit Office (WAO) which has an independent statutory role. Responsibility for procuring necessary audit and assurance checks resides with the Joint Committee. The Joint Committee oversees the financial reporting process to ensure the balance, transparency and integrity of published financial information, and, monitors the performance and effectiveness of the external audit functions within the wider regulatory context.

#### **Audit Committee**

Internally, Flintshire County Council's Audit Committee's role and function, as lead council, provides assurance of the systems of internal control through reviewing the effectiveness of Flintshire's systems through which the Project's funds are controlled. It also monitors the performance and effectiveness of Flintshire's internal audit function.

#### **Internal Audit**

Flintshire County Council's Internal Audit service is provided in accordance with CIPFA's Code of Practice for Internal Audit for Local Government in the United Kingdom and in accordance with the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit. The Code of Practice states that Internal Audit is an assurance function that provides an independent and objective opinion to the organization on the control environment, by evaluating its effectiveness in achieving the organisation's objectives. It objectively examines, evaluates and reports on the adequacy of the control environment as a contribution to the proper, economic, efficient and effective use of resources.

In accordance with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice the Internal Audit Manager reports to Flintshire County Council's Audit Committee, as the lead Council, a summary of audit findings and prepares an annual report that summarises the results of internal audit work during the year on the overall system of internal control at Flintshire County Council, through which the Partnership's funds are controlled.

#### **External Regulation**

External arrangements for regulation and assurance are provided principally the Wales Audit Office (WAO).

Their role is independent of government and they examine and challenge the performance and effectiveness of Welsh public bodies work and produce either periodic or annual local and national reports on their findings. All formal reports are presented to the Joint Committee.

The whole project is closely supported, monitored and reviewed by WG to ensure the project is delivering part of their waste strategy as it set out to do.

#### Whistle Blowing

Each Council is committed to the highest possible standards of openness, probity and accountability. To support that commitment employees and others with serious concerns about any aspect of the Project's work are encouraged to come forward and voice those concerns. It is recognised that sensitive cases have to proceed on a confidential basis. Each individual Council's policy makes it clear that employees can do so without fear of reprisal. Policies are available from each Partner Council.

#### ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

continued

#### **Complaints**

Each Council has adopted a formal complaints procedure and these are periodically updated.

#### 4. REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

The North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its governance framework, including the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the Senior Managers within the Councils who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment, and by comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates.

#### **Internal Audit Review**

During the year Internal Audit completed an overall governance review which concluded that

- An effective governance framework has been established for managing risk, ensuring transparency and demonstrating accountability
- A clear decision making protocol has been established and the Joint Committee is provided with information which is fit for purpose, relevant, timely and gives clear explanations of technical and financial issues and their implications
- A best practice risk register is maintained and risk identification, assessment, mitigation and reporting is robust.
- Officers and members have a good understanding of their roles, responsibilities and involvement in the overall governance framework.

#### **Member Training**

During the latter part of the year a programme of induction was prepared ready for new Members of the Joint Committee following the County Council elections on 3rd May 2012. An induction / briefing was held for Joint Committee Members in August prior to the first Joint Committee since the May 2012 County Council elections to ensure any new Joint Committee Members were fully informed on the project.

The project has also carried out a number of briefing sessions and consultation sessions with Members of all five authorities at key stages in the procurement process. The intention is to continue, and indeed increase this direct engagement with Members across the Councils leading up to key decisions such as appointment of preferred bidder and contract award.

#### Flintshire County Council's Internal Audit

The department undertook a self-assessment against the CIPFA guidelines for Internal Audit in Local Government and found a high level of compliance.

The Wales Audit Office undertake an annual review of the Council's Internal Audit service against the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government. Although this evaluation is not carried out to provide assurance to FCC about the internal audit function, in their latest review they concluded that internal audit complied with nine of the eleven standards and partially complied with the other two.

In his annual report, based on the results of internal audits undertaken during the year, the Internal Audit Manager has concluded that Flintshire's arrangements for governance, risk management and internal control are adequate and effective.

#### ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

continued

#### Flintshire County Council's Audit Committee

The committee received specific training after the May elections to enable the members to fulfil their role. Members completed a self-assessment against CIPFA Toolkit for Local Authority Audit Committees in late 2012. The results showed that in the main the Committee meets the guidelines. Some areas were highlighted where existing arrangements can be strengthened. Training for the new Audit Committee will be maintained in 2013/14.

#### 5. SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES

The governance of the project is very clearly set out in the PID and the Inter Authority Agreement which defines key decisions throughout the project and at which level those decisions are required. This has given clarity and certainty to the governance arrangements which protect all the authorities.

No significant issues have been identified when completing the above statement

Signed	Chair of the North Wales Residual Waste Partnership
	Joint Committee
Signed	Chief Executive of the Lead Authority



# Audit of Financial Statements Report North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee

Audit year: 2012-13

Issued: September 2013

**Document reference: 459A2013** 

# Status of report

This document has been prepared for the internal use of North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee as part of work performed in accordance with statutory functions, the Code of Audit Practice and the Statement of Responsibilities issued by the Auditor General for Wales.

No responsibility is taken by the Wales Audit Office (the Auditor General and his staff) and, where applicable, the appointed auditor in relation to any member, director, officer or other employee in their individual capacity, or to any third party.

In the event of receiving a request for information to which this document may be relevant, attention is drawn to the Code of Practice issued under section 45 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000. The section 45 Code sets out the practice in the handling of requests that is expected of public authorities, including consultation with relevant third parties. In relation to this document, the Auditor General for Wales (and, where applicable, his appointed auditor) is a relevant third party. Any enquiries regarding disclosure or re-use of this document should be sent to the Wales Audit Office at infoofficer@wao.gov.uk.

The team who delivered the work was John Herniman, Amanda Hughes, Ron Parker and Diane Jones.

# **Contents**

The Appointed Auditor intends to issue an unqualified audit report on your financial statements for the year 2012-13. There are some matters to report to you prior to their approval.

Summary report	
Introduction	4
Proposed audit report	4
Significant issues arising from the audit	
Independence and Objectivity	5
Appendices	
Final Letter of Representation	6

# Summary report

#### Introduction

- 1. The Appointed Auditor is responsible for providing an opinion on whether the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee (the Joint Committee) at 31 March 2013 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended.
- 2. We received the draft financial statements by the statutory deadline (30 June 2013) and have now substantially completed the audit work. We are reporting to you the more significant issues arising from the audit, which we believe you must consider prior to approval of the financial statements. The audit team has already discussed these issues with the responsible finance officer for the Joint Committee (Kerry Feather).
- 3. We do not try to obtain absolute assurance that the financial statements are correctly stated, but adopt the concept of materiality. Whether an item is judged to be material can also be affected by certain qualitative issues such as legal and regulatory requirements and political sensitivity. In planning and conducting the audit, we seek to identify material misstatements in your financial statements, namely, those that might result in a reader of the accounts being misled.

## Proposed audit report

**4.** It is the Appointed Auditor's intention to issue an unqualified audit report on the financial statements once you have provided us with a Letter of Representation based on that set out in Appendix 1.

# Significant issues arising from the audit

5. In the course of the audit we consider a number of matters both qualitative and quantitative relating to the accounts and report any significant issues arising to you.

#### Uncorrected misstatements

**6.** There are no misstatements identified in the financial statements, which remain uncorrected.

#### Corrected misstatements

7. There were a small number of narrative amendments to the draft financial statements which have been corrected by management.

# We have one concern about the qualitative aspects of your accounting practices and financial reporting

8. Whilst the constituent authorities of the Joint Committee obtained related party declarations in respect of its members, the Joint Committee did not carry out an explicit exercise to ensure that the declarations related to the activities of the Joint Committee. In future this exercise needs to be performed.

#### We did not encounter any difficulties during the audit

9. In response to our recommendation last year, it is pleasing to note that the lead Council addressed a number of issues in relation to the availability of working papers and points of contact for audit queries. As a result we did not encounter any difficulties in conducting the audit.

#### There are no other matters that we need to report to you

- **10.** There are no other matters to report to you. In particular:
  - there were no significant matters discussed and corresponded upon with management that we need to report;
  - there are no other matters significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process that we need to report; and
  - we did not identify any material weaknesses in your internal controls that we have not reported to you already.

## Independence and objectivity

- **11.** As part of the finalisation process, we are required to provide you with representations concerning our independence.
- **12.** We have complied with ethical standards and in our professional judgment, we are independent and our objectivity is not compromised. There are no relationships between the Wales Audit Office and the North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee that we consider to bear on our objectivity and independence.

# Appendix 1

# Final Letter of Representation

(Audited body's letterhead)

Anthony Barrett
Appointed Auditor
Wales Audit Office
24 Cathedral Road
Cardiff
CF11 9LJ

Date

# Representations regarding the 2012-13 financial statements

This letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee for the year ended 31 March 2013 for the purpose of expressing an opinion on their truth and fairness and their proper preparation.

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made enquiries as we consider sufficient, we can make the following representations to you.

## Management representations

#### Responsibilities

We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with legislative requirements and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom; in particular the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance therewith.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, maintenance and review of internal control to prevent and detect fraud and error.

#### Information provided

We have provided you with:

full access to:

- all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the financial statements such as books of account and supporting documentation, minutes of meetings and other matters;
- additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and
- unrestricted access to staff from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.
- the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud;
- our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects the North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee and involves:
  - management;
  - employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
  - others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.
- our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators or others;
- our knowledge of all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements; and
- the identity of all related parties and all the related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

#### Financial statement representations

All transactions, assets and liabilities have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial statements.

Significant assumptions used in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.

Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed.

All events occurring subsequent to the reporting date which require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted for or disclosed.

All known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements have been disclosed to the auditor and accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. The effects of uncorrected misstatements identified during the audit are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

# Representations by the North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee

We acknowledge that the representations made by management, above, have been discussed with us.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of true and fair financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. The financial statements were approved by the North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee on 3 September 2013.

Signed by:

Kerry Feather

Responsible Financial Officer

Date: 3 September 2013

Signed by:

Chair of North Wales Residual Waste

Joint Committee

Date: 3 September 2013



Wales Audit Office 24 Cathedral Road Cardiff CF11 9LJ

Tel: 029 2032 0500 Ffôn: 029 2032 0500

Fax: 029 2032 0600 Ffacs: 029 2032 0600

Textphone: 029 2032 0660 Ffôn Testun: 029 2032 0660

Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru

24 Heol y Gadeirlan

Caerdydd CF11 9LJ

Website: www.wao.gov.uk Gwefan: www.wao.gov.uk











#### APPENDIX C, AGENDA ITEM NO: 5

Anthony Barrett Appointed Auditor Wales Audit Office 24 Cathedral Road Cardiff CF11 9LJ

Date 3<sup>rd</sup> September 2013

#### Representations regarding the 2012-13 financial statements

This letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee for the year ended 31 March 2013 for the purpose of expressing an opinion on their truth and fairness and their proper preparation.

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made enquiries as we consider sufficient, we can make the following representations to you.

#### **Management representations**

#### Responsibilities

We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with legislative requirements and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom; in particular the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance therewith.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, maintenance and review of internal control to prevent and detect fraud and error.

#### Information provided

We have provided you with:

- full access to:
  - all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the financial statements such as books of account and supporting documentation, minutes of meetings and other matters;
  - additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit: and
  - unrestricted access to staff from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.
- the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud;
- our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects the North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee and involves:
  - o management;











- employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
- o others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.
- our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators or others;
- our knowledge of all known instances of non-compliance or suspected noncompliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements; and
- the identity of all related parties and all the related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

#### Financial statement representations

All transactions, assets and liabilities have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial statements.

Significant assumptions used in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.

Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed.

All events occurring subsequent to the reporting date which require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted for or disclosed.

All known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements have been disclosed to the auditor and accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. The effects of uncorrected misstatements identified during the audit are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.











## Representations by the North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee











We acknowledge that the representations made by management, above, have been discussed with us.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of true and fair financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. The financial statements were approved by the North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee on 3 September 2013.

Signed by: Kerry Feather Responsible Financial Officer Date: 3 September 2013 Signed by: Chair of North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee Date: 3 September 201